An Analysis of Employee Perceptions Towards

Computer-Based Training

by

Amy L. Gustafson

A Research Paper
Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the
Requirements for the
Master of Science Degree
in

Training and Development

askel 1 XAV

Dr. David A. Kohnsor Research Advisor

The Graduate School

University of Wisconsin-Stout

December, 2007

The Graduate School University of Wisconsin-Stout Menomonie, WI

Author: Gustafson, Amy L.

Title: An Analysis of Employee Perceptions Towards Computer-Based

Training

Graduate Degree/ Major: MS Training and Development

Research Adviser: David A. Johnson, Ph.D.

Month/Year: December, 2007

Number of Pages: 41

Style Manual Used: American Psychological Association, 5th edition

ABSTRACT

The learning environment in the business world has changed tremendously. As technology has improved, the ways to deliver training to employees have changed dramatically. Companies are no longer required to solely depend on classroom training to keep employee skills up-to-date. Computer-based training (CBT) has become a leading method of training delivery for companies with numerous locations and employees. The purpose of this study is to determine employee perceptions of the computer-based training courses currently used and available for use. The survey for this study was developed and delivered to a sample of employees at one location of a Fortune 50 company.

The Graduate School

University of Wisconsin Stout

Menomonie, WI

Acknowledgments

This paper is dedicated to my family for all of their support throughout this process (it took a whole lot longer than it should have). To my parents, thank you for instilling in me the importance of a college education. Mom, you can have comfort in knowing both of your girls can make it on their own. Dad, I know I have made you proud. To my sister, thank you for having the patience to edit and re-edit not only this paper, but all of my papers. To my daughter Lexi, you are too little to understand the importance of this paper; however, it will make your life better. To my husband, thank you for supporting me throughout this process and everyday.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
ABSTRACTii
List of Tablesvi
Chapter I: Introduction
Purpose of the Study2
Research Objectives2
Limitations of the Study3
Methodology3
Assumptions
Definitions of Terms4
Chapter II: Literature Review5
Chapter III: Methodology
Subject Selection and Description
Instrumentation12
Data Collection Procedures
Data Analysis
Chapter IV: Results
Item Analysis
Chapter V: Discussion
Research Objectives
Summary of the Research Process25
Conclusions
Recommendations27

References	29
Appendix A: Cover Letter	31
Appendix B: Survey	33

List of Tables

Table 1: Age Demographic Data	15
Table 2: Gender Demographic Data	15
Table 3: Length of Employment Demographic Data	16
Table 4: Enrolled in CBT Course	17
Table 5: Supervisor Enrollment in Course	17
Table 6: Personal Enrollment in Courses	17
Table 7: Repeat Course	18
Table 8: Adequate Time is Allowed	18
Table 9: Allotted Time is Used	19
Table 10: CBT Courses Provide Sufficient Information	19
Table 11: CBT Courses Have Sufficient Interactive Modules	20
Table 12: Retain Information	20
Table 13: Self-Paced Style	21
Table 14: CBT Courses Meet Training Needs	21
Table 15: CBT Courses are Effective Alternatives	22
Table 16: Opportunities to Provide Feedback	22
Table 17: Provide Feedback When Given Opportunity	23
Table 18: Training Delivery Preference	23

Chapter I: Introduction

Company X, a subsidiary of a Fortune 50 organization, is dedicated to meeting the health and well-being needs of people 50 and older. This company has an office in Eau Claire, Wisconsin which handles the claims processing, billing and enrollment functions. In the Eau Claire location, Company X has two settings in which employees work; the office and at home as telecommuters. The company is considering expanding their telecommuting program due to growth in business and space issues at the current office location; therefore, they are looking to increase the online learning resources to reduce the amount of time and money spent on training telecommuters in the office.

The two primary training delivery methods currently used in the Eau Claire office are instructor-led classroom training and computer-based training. Classroom training is used primarily to teach new-hire and cross-training courses. Computer-based training courses cover numerous topics in human resources and compliance, as well as personal and professional growth. Computer-based training courses are also used when mandatory training is required across the entire organization. The company houses a library of courses in an online library known as Learnwell. The courses available in Learnwell are used for mandatory compliance and personal and professional development needs.

Due to the growth in the company and the potential to increase online learning, it is important to study the perception of the current online training courses. Few quantitative studies have been conducted to determine if employees enjoy learning using computer-based training courses and if these courses provide the necessary information to learn and retain the information covered. The company is considering using computer-based training courses to replace instructor-led classroom training to eliminate the need

for telecommuters to return to the office for training. It is important for the company to evaluate current perceptions to determine the next steps in this process. This chapter will present the purpose of this study, the research objectives, the limitations of the study, the research methodology used, the assumptions of the study and definitions of terms used throughout the study.

Purpose of the Study

The purpose of this study is to determine the perceptions employees have regarding the computer-based training courses used within the company. The results of this study will identify areas for improvement in current computer-based training courses, as well as establish a baseline for creating future computer-based training courses.

Research Objectives

The objectives of this study are as follows:

- To discover employee perceptions towards computer-based training in comparison to instructor-led classroom training.
- To determine if computer-based training courses sufficiently enhance the learning experience.
- To determine if computer-based training courses provide effective course material.

Limitations of the Study

There are three limitations to this study.

- 1. The survey is limited to the claims department.
- The study will be used to gauge employee perception towards computer-based training.
- 3. The survey results will be limited to the number of completed surveys.

Methodology

A review of literature was conducted on reactions to computer-based training courses, as well as impacts that computer-based training courses have on students. The survey instrument (Appendix B) was administered to the claims department employees with a population of over 500 employees. The survey consisted of 19 questions, including 10 quantitative questions.

Assumptions

Five primary assumptions of the study are:

- 1. All questions were answered openly and honestly.
- 2. All participants have completed at least one computer-based training course.
- 3. All participants have completed at least one classroom training course.
- 4. The views of the responding participants will accurately represent the perceptions of the whole population.
- 5. All participants thoughtfully responded to the survey.

Definition of Terms

Computer-based training (CBT): An interactive learning experience between a learner and a computer in which the computer provides the majority of the stimulus, the learner must respond, and the computer analyzes the response and feedback to the learner (Gery, 1987 p.6).

Learnwell: Online company library of personal and professional development computer-based training courses.

Likert Scale: A rating scale measuring the level of agreement to a statement.

Perception: The process or result of becoming aware of objects, relationships, and events by means of the senses, which include such activities as recognizing, observing, and discrimination (APA Dictionary of Psychology, 2007, p.683).

Chapter II: Literature Review

Introduction

This literature review section considers research topics directly related to the development of this study. The topics include: training evaluation, perception, and advantages and disadvantages of computer-based training.

Training Evaluation

The reason for evaluating training is to determine the effectiveness of the training course and to provide improvement ideas. According to Kirkpatrick (1994), evaluation is defined by some as measuring changes in behavior that result from training. It is necessary to evaluate every training course to ensure the course met the needs of the trainee as well as the needs of the organization and to determine if the course should be continued to be offered.

There are numerous benefits to evaluation: it helps focus the training (right content, right audience, effective delivery), it validates performance gaps and learner needs (tests, checklists, action planning), it determines if training is the solution to the performance gap, and it gains access to more resources if value is demonstrated (McCain, 2005). Evaluating reaction provides a gauge of participant perceptions regarding whether or not program objectives were met, if the pace and sequence of material was adequate, and if the quality and variety of media used was sufficient. Evaluating reaction also helps to determine if the content of the material was relevant and sufficient, if the trainer knowledge and skill was adequate, and if the instructional strategies were effective.

There are advantages and disadvantages to evaluation (McCain, 2005). The advantages include: immediate feedback, quantifiable data, anonymous response

eliminates intimidation, and a familiar approach as evaluation is built right in to the training program. The disadvantages include: subjective information, ratings may be effected based on training strategy and behavior of the facilitator, and the ratings may be disproportionate to the training based on the facilitator, content (liking or disliking), and other training participants.

The four-level Kirkpatrick model of evaluation (Kirkpatrick, 1994) is used today in many organizations to evaluate training effectiveness. The four levels of this model are: reaction, learning, behavior and results. The first level, reaction, measures how trainees react to a program. The second level, learning, measures the changes in trainee's attitudes, the increase in knowledge, and increase in skills. These changes are measured by using methods such as testing and self-assessments. The third level, behavior, is defined as the change in on-the-job behavior after completing a training course. The fourth level, results, measures organizational improvements in production, quality, and costs. All four levels of evaluation are important, but reaction to training leads to the development of perceptions regarding training deliver methods. Therefore, the focus of this literature review will be on level one, reaction.

Level One Evaluation: Reaction

Evaluating reaction to various aspects of training programs is comparable to measuring customer satisfaction (Kirkpatrick, 1994). Measuring reaction is important for several reasons: it provides valuable feedback to evaluate and improve training, it provides trainees a voice in the training course, it provides quantitative information regarding the course, and it establishes standards for future programs. Evaluating reaction can also help the trainees think about what they have learned and how they will apply the

new knowledge in the work setting (Phillips and Stone, 2002). Evaluating reaction also provides the training department important feedback from the participants to make changes if needed.

Kirkpatrick (1994) states trainees must like the training program to obtain the maximum benefit from the training. Level one evaluation can measure how well the trainees received the training. Positive reaction to training is important as trainees who feel positive about the training course are more likely to apply the new skills on the job (Kidder and Rouille, 1997). Organizational support of training can also increase with positive trainee reaction.

Receiving post-course participant reaction is an excellent way to evaluate the effectiveness and appropriateness of the course delivery methods. There are many reasons to evaluate trainee reaction to training programs. Key reasons include: to determine if the pace and content were appropriate, to provide feedback to the facilitator, to determine if training objectives were met, and to reinforce the learning (McCain, 2005). Kirkpatrick (1994) states that relevance and potential for confusion must also be evaluated. If the material is not relevant for the trainee, the response will not be favorable. Identifying any potential for confusion will help the facilitator make corrections in either the design or delivery of the material.

Phillip and Stone (2002) believe that reaction may measure the participants' planned actions as a result of the training and planned-action data can be used to determine the focal point for follow-up evaluations and compare actual results to planned results which may lead to program improvements.

Perception

Perception is the subjective evaluation a trainee will make regarding the training course. The trainee needs to see the benefits of computer-based training to comprehend the effectiveness of this training delivery method.

Determining the difference between perception and reality is important because perceptions can become reality if corrective measures are not taken (Abisheganaden, 2002). This is imperative when perceptions are negative. Perceptions take shape and judgments are made by the time perceptions are formed. Abishegenaden (2002) believes that perceptions occur because the amount of information we encounter is growing and we are not able to handle all of this new information. Perceptions are hard to change as they are filed away in memory. To change a perception, a new file needs to be created in memory. Files need to be created in a timely fashion to reduce the risk of negative perceptions becoming reality. Negative perceptions will take value away from the true impact of the new information.

Research indicates perception is different than reality in many cases. Pollak (1995) discussed how public perception regarding the spread of cancer is different than reality. Cancer cases, with the exception of lung cancer, have not increased since 1930. The perception that cancer cases have increased is due to the myths regarding cancer threats and poor public policy.

Shuldiner (2006) discusses how auto buyers will spend more money for a foreign car than a comparable less expensive domestic model based on perceptions of lesser quality of the domestic models. These cases display the need to evaluate employee

perception to determine perception versus reality. Comparison studies need to be completed to get people to be accurate in their perceptions based on actual information.

Computer-based training

Computer-based training is method of maximizing workforce exposure to training while containing training costs. Computer-based training allows interactivity like no other training deliver method ever has (Gery, 1987). Gery believes creating an interactive learning experience is the process of structuring and sequencing material in a cycle that results in increased knowledge. The interaction within computer-based training courses allows the trainee the capability of learning material in multiple ways.

There are many advantages to computer-based training. The main advantage of computer-based training is availability. Once a course is developed, it is available anytime, anywhere (Wehr, 1988). This is important when the student population for a course is large and geographically dispersed. This also reduces the amount of time workers are away from the work-setting. Wehr (1988) states additional advantages of computer-based training include the availability of courses, pace, interactivity, consistency and time savings.

Individual training needs are easy to meet as courses are available when the trainee is able to take the course. If refresher training is needed, the trainee is able to return to the computer-based training course to review the same material that was used for the initial training. The trainee is able to complete the training course at his/her own pace and the trainee is only able to move on once a module is finished. Computer-based training eliminates the frustration of having slower learners in a training class.

Trainees taking a course using computer-based training all receive the same training which reduces the inconsistencies that can happen with instructor-led training. Computer-based training takes less time than instructor-led training which can save money due to a reduction in time away from the job (Wehr, 1988).

Additional advantages of computer-based training include the responsiveness of different learning styles, ability to update material quickly and easily, and no minimal class size (Lewis, 1999). Computer-based training courses can also include resources to cover the different types of learning styles (audio, visual, etc.). The course content for computer-based training can be updated very quickly and the updates can easily be shared with everyone in the company. This allows for the newest material to be covered in the courses. As computer-based training courses are available when needed, there is no minimal class size required which eliminates a constraint instructor-led courses may have.

The costs of creating and administering a course using computer-based training are much lower than a course using instructor-led training (Wehr, 1988). Computer-based training eliminates the need for travel costs as well as presentation costs. The main cost for computer-based training courses is for the development of the courses.

Previous studies show that there are advantages to using computer-based training.

A study, The Impact of Classroom Instruction Versus Computer-Based Instruction on

Participant Learning of Technical Information, found computer-based training as

effective as classroom training (Wendt, 2000). Another study reveals computer-based

training may be an effective alternative to classroom training (Harp, Stazinger, & Taylor,

1998). A third study finds computer-based training to be as effective as classroom training while reducing instructional time (Maul & Spotts, 1993).

Along with these advantages, O'Connell (2002) finds disadvantages of computer-based training in comparison to instructor-led training. The trainee's background in using computer and software systems can have a negative impact on the effective of computer-based training. The trainee may not be able to successfully manipulate the computer-based training course and learn the material to a satisfactory level. This may result in poor ratings, regardless of how outstanding the material may be (O'Connell, 2002).

Another disadvantage of computer-based training is the elimination of the classroom setting and peers (Galagan, 1987). Classroom discussion can provide different insights on a training topic and can provide examples how to use the new information in day-to-day activities.

Summary

This literature review examines areas directly related to the subject of this study. It is necessary to evaluate training courses to ensure the course objectives are met as well as to ensure the training course meets the needs of the trainee. Computer-based training has many advantages and saves time and money for companies. Chapter three will discuss the subject selection and description, instrumentation, data collection procedures, and data analysis used in the methodology to complete this study.

Chapter III: Methodology

The purpose of this study was to determine employee perceptions towards computer-based training courses. The following research questions were addressed:

- 1. What are the employee perceptions towards computer-based training in comparison to instructor-led classroom training?
- 2. Do computer-based training courses sufficiently enhance the learning experience?
- 3. Do computer-based training courses provide effective course material?

 Subject Selection and Description

The participants of this voluntary survey were employees of the claims department. The participants were Claims Processors, Field Service Representatives, Subject Matter Experts, Supervisors, and Business Managers. The participants' tenures with the company varied as did their full or part-time status.

Instrumentation

A survey (Appendix B) was developed and distributed to the claims processing team using Zoomerang software to administer the survey. The communications department sent an email out to the claims processing team with the instructions and the link to the survey. The selected employees were given the necessary time to complete this survey. The survey gathered information regarding employee perception towards computer-based training. A four-point Likert scale was used to measure the responses. The responses included: 1- strongly disagree, 2- disagree, 3-agree, 4-strongly agree. The

four-point Likert scale was used to eliminate a neutral response to the survey questions.

The survey also gathered demographic information including age, gender, and length of employment.

Data Collection Procedures

A 19 question survey (Appendix B) was administered to the claims department to assess their perception towards computer-based training. The survey included 10 quantitative questions which provided the basis for future changes to the computer-based training courses. The researcher worked with the communications department to create and administer the survey utilizing company email. The data were compiled by the communications department and provided to the researcher.

Data Analysis

The 19 question survey consisted of 10 Likert scale quantitative questions where the participants selected a value given to each survey question. There were four questions where the participants answered either yes or no and the participants were given opportunity to answer two open-ended questions, along with space for any additional comments. The descriptive values for each question were compiled to determine employee perception towards computer-based training. The data were then rank ordered by mean score.

Chapter IV: Results

The purpose of this study is to determine employee perceptions towards computer-based training. This chapter details the results from the survey (Appendix B) administered to the claims department at Company X. The survey was distributed to 555 employees with 289 employees responding for a 52% response rate. The responses from this study were used to meet the objectives of this study and identify areas for enhancements of computer-based training courses.

Research Objectives

The objectives of this study were:

- To discover employee perceptions towards computer-based training in comparison to instructor-led classroom training.
- To determine if computer-based training courses sufficiently enhance the learning experience.
- To determine if computer-based training courses provide effective course material.

Demographic Information

Data were collected to find the following demographics: age, gender and length of employment. As shown in table one, the ages of the 289 participants ranged from under 20 years to 60+ years with 45% in the 20-30 age category.

Table 1

Age Demographic Data

Age	No. of Respondents
Under 20	3
20-25	60
26-30	68
31-35	38
36-40	23
41-45	31
46-50	30
51-55	18
56-60	9
60 and older	9

The study indicates of the 289 participants, 87% are female and 13% are male.

Table 2

Gender Demographic Data

Gender	No. of Respondents
Male	37
Female	252

The study indicates of the 289 participants, 42% of the subjects have been employed with the company between one and four years:

Table 3

Length of Employment Demographic Data

Length of Employment	No. of Respondents
Less than 6 months	65
6-12 months	40
1-2 years	74
2-4 years	45
4-6 years	8
6 or more years	67

Survey Questions

The survey consisted of three sections. Section one consisted of four questions to be answered with either a yes or no. Section two consisted of 10 quantitative statements with the participant rating their agreement to statements using a Likert scale. Section three consisted of two open-ended questions allowing the participants the opportunity to provide detailed answers to the questions. Space was also provided for additional comments if needed.

Section One

Question one: In the past year, I have enrolled in a computer-based training course through Learnwell? The results indicate 75% of the participants have enrolled and 25% have not enrolled in a computer-based training course through Learnwell.

Table 4

Enrolled in CBT Course

Answer		No. of Respondents
Yes		216
No		73

Question two: In the past year, my Supervisor has enrolled me in a course to complete through Learnwell? The results indicate 64% of the participants have and 36% have not been enrolled in a course by their Supervisor.

Table 5
Supervisor Enrollment in Course

Answer	No. of Respondents
Yes	186
No	103

Question three: I am aware I am able to enroll in courses through Learnwell? The results indicate 80% of the participants are and 20% are not aware they are able to enroll in courses through Learnwell.

Table 6

Personal Enrollment in Courses

	Answer	No. of Respondents
Yes		231
No		58

Question four: I was required to repeat a course in the past year? The results indicate 20% of the participants were and 80% were not required to repeat a course.

Table 7

Repeat Course

Answ	ver	No. of Respondents	
Yes		57	
No	_	232	

Section Two

Statement one: Adequate time is allowed to complete computer-based training courses. The results indicate 3% strongly disagreed, 3% disagreed, 52% agreed, and 42% strongly agreed.

Table 8

Adequate Time is Allowed

Rating	No. of Respondents
Strongly Disagree	9
Disagree	10
Agree	148
Strongly Agree	119

Statement two: I use the allotted time to complete computer-based training courses. The results indicate 2% strongly disagreed, 12% disagreed, 58% agreed, and 28% strongly agreed.

Table 9

Allotted Time is Used

Rating	No. of Respondents
Strongly Disagree	7
Disagree	33
Agree	163
Strongly Agree	80

Statement three: Computer-based training courses provide sufficient information.

The results indicate 3% strongly disagreed, 14% disagreed, 73% agreed, and 21% strongly agreed.

Table 10

CBT Courses Provide Sufficient Information

Rating	No. of Respondents	
Strongly Disagree	3	
Disagree	14	
Agree	206	
Strongly Agree	61	

Statement four: Computer-based training courses have sufficient interactive modules. The results indicate 4% strongly disagreed, 18% disagreed, 66% agreed, and 26% strongly agreed. There were four participants who did not respond to this statement.

Table 11

CBT Courses Have Sufficient Interactive Modules

Rating	No. of Respondents	
Strongly Disagree	4	
Disagree	18	
Agree	189	
Strongly Agree	74	

Statement five: I retain the information provided in the computer-based training courses. The results indicate 2% strongly disagreed, 19% disagreed, 64% agreed, and 15% strongly agreed. There were four participants who did not respond to this statement.

Table 12

Retain Information

Rating	No. of Respondents	
Strongly Disagree	6	
Disagree	55	
Agree	182	
Strongly Agree	42	

Statement six: I find the self-paced style of computer-based training beneficial.

The results indicate 1% strongly disagreed, 5% disagreed, 57% agreed, and 37% strongly agreed. There were four participants who did not respond to this statement.

Table 13
Self-Paced Style

Rating	No. of Respondents	
Strongly Disagree	4	
Disagree	13	
Agree	162	
Strongly Agree	106	

Statement seven: Computer-based training courses meet my training needs. The results indicate 4% strongly disagreed, 19% disagreed, 61% agreed, and 16% strongly agreed. There were four participants who did not respond to this statement.

Table 14

CBT Courses Meet Training Needs

Rating	No. of Respondents	
Strongly Disagree	11	
Disagree	53	
Agree	174	
Strongly Agree	47	

Statement eight: Computer-based training courses are effective alternatives to instructor-led classroom courses. The results indicate 4% strongly disagreed, 18% disagreed, 54% agreed, and 25% strongly agreed. There were four participants who did not respond to this statement.

Table 15

CBT Courses are Effective Alternatives

Rating	No. of Respondents	
Strongly Disagree	10	
Disagree	51	
Agree	153	
Strongly Agree	71	

Statement nine: I have had opportunities to provide feedback on computer-based training courses. The results indicate 6% strongly disagreed, 27% disagreed, 49% agreed, and 18% strongly agreed. There were seven participants who did not respond to this statement.

Table 16

Opportunities to Provide Feedback

Rating	No. of Respondents	
Strongly Disagree	18	
Disagree	76	
Agree	138	
Strongly Agree	50	

Statement ten: I provide feedback on computer-based training courses when given the opportunity. The results indicate 3% strongly disagreed, 17% disagreed, 63% agreed, and 16% strongly agreed. There were four participants who did not respond to this statement.

Table 17

Provide Feedback When Given Opportunity

Rating	No. of Respondents	
Strongly Disagree	9	
Disagree	49	
Agree	180	
Strongly Agree	47	

Section Three

Question one: Do you prefer computer-based training or instructor-led classroom training? The results indicate 53% prefer computer-based training and 45% prefer instructor-led classroom training. There were six participants who did not respond to this question. The participants had the opportunity to explain their choice and the majority who chose computer-based training preferred it due to the convenience of completing the course at their own pace and less time to complete (especially for telecommuters as they do not need to come in to the office). The majority of the participants who chose instructor-led classroom training preferred this delivery method based on interaction with others and having the ability to ask questions.

Table 18

Training Delivery Preference

Delivery Method	No. of Respondents	
Computer-based training	154	
Instructor-led classroom training	129	

Question two: What changes would you suggest for future computer-based training courses? There were 117 participants who provided suggestions for future computer-based training courses. There were five main topics the suggestions surrounded are: the number and speed of interactions, the ability to ask questions or review most common questions, the pace of the current CBT courses, the course topic (relate to current position), and having more time to complete without pressure of production.

Additional Comments: There were 38 participants who provided additional comments. The top three topics for the additional comments include: some of the CBT courses are too lengthy to remember all of the information at one time; the CBT courses are repetitive especially around compliance, and CBT courses are great for people who can learn by reading but difficult for those who learn by listening.

Summary

The results state that the participants are generally satisfied with computer-based training as a training delivery method. More than half of the participants believe CBT courses provide sufficient information and meet their training needs. Participants would like to have the opportunity to provide feedback more often than they currently do.

Chapter five will include a summary, conclusions, and recommendations for future computer-based training courses. The researcher will apply the survey results to develop the recommendations.

Chapter V: Discussion

The purpose of this study was to determine the perceptions employees of Company X have towards the computer-based training courses currently used within the company. The company is considering using computer-based training courses to replace instructor-led classroom training to eliminate the need for telecommuters to return to the office for training. The study results identify areas of focus for delivering computer-based training courses in the future.

Research Objectives

The objectives of this study were as follows:

- To discover employee preferences towards computer-based training in comparison to instructor-led classroom training.
- To determine if computer-based training courses sufficiently enhance the learning experience.
- To determine if computer-based training courses provide effective course material.

In this chapter, the research results have been summarized and conclusions and recommendations have been made.

Summary of the Research Process

This study began with an introduction to the problem, the purpose and objectives of the study, and other background information. A review of literature was completed which provided background information on training evaluation, perception, and advantages and disadvantages of computer-based training. A 19 question survey was

created and administered to the 555 members of the claims department. The response rate for this survey was 52%.

Conclusions

The results from section one of the survey (Appendix B) show the majority of the participants (75%) have enrolled in computer-based training courses through Learnwell, and 80% of the participants are aware they can enroll in CBT courses. In addition, many participants (64%) have had Supervisors enroll them in a computer-based training course. Only 20% of the participants have been required to repeat a course through Learnwell in the past year. These results support previous studies that show computer-based training courses are as effective as classroom training (Wendt, 2000).

Section two results show an agreement to all 10 statements. The participants feel computer-based training courses provide sufficient information (94% of the respondents agreed or strongly agreed) while providing sufficient interactive modules (92% of the respondents agreed or strongly agreed). The participants believe adequate time is allowed to complete computer-based training courses (94% of the respondents agreed or strongly agreed) and 86% of the participants use the allotted time given. Most participants (94% agreed or strongly agreed) find the self-paced style of computer-based training to be beneficial and 79% retain the information provided in CBT courses.

The data shows 79% of the participants believe computer-based training courses are effective alternatives to instructor-led classroom courses and 77% of the participants stated CBT courses meet their training needs. These results also support previous studies that state CBT may be an effective alternative to classroom training (Maul & Spotts, 1993). Many participants (67%) state they have had opportunities to provide feedback on

computer-based training courses, while 79% of the participants state they provide feedback when given the opportunity.

Section three of the survey shows that 53% of the participants prefer computer-based training over instructor-led classroom training. The participants who prefer computer-based training do so because of the convenience of completing CBT courses at their own pace. They also enjoy CBT courses as they do not take as long as classroom courses. CBT courses also save time for telecommuters as they do not need to drive to the office for training.

The participants were given the opportunity to provide suggestions for future computer-based training courses along with additional general comments. The majority of the suggestions were related to the pace of the current CBT courses, the ability to get questions answered, the speed and number of interactions, and time to complete CBT courses without feeling pressure from Supervisors regarding production.

This study resulted in three major conclusions:

- The participants are aware computer-based training courses are available for enrollment.
- The participants find computer-based training courses to be effective and CBT courses meet their training needs.
- 3. The preferred method of training delivery is computer-based training.

Recommendations

The following recommendations are made based on the results of this study:

 Create computer-based training courses on modules currently delivered via classroom training.

- Create computer-based training courses for topics relating to claims processing (review training).
- 3. Increase the speed of current interactive screens in existing computerbased training courses.
- Add a section to computer-based training courses regarding the most common asked questions of the course topic.
- Allow participants to provide feedback on all computer-based training courses.

References

- Abisheganaden, Felix. (2002). Graft: Classic Case of perception vs. reality. *New Straits Times-Management Times*. Retrieved November 28, 2007, from http://ezproxy.lib.uwstout.edu:2170/ehost/detail?vid=8&hid=3&sid=36c08584-16ff-4adc-a41f-47ca67ac120d%40sessionmgr9.
- Galagan, Patricia. (1987). Computers and Training? Allies or Enemies? *Training and Development Journal*, 41(4) 73-76,
- Gery, Gloria. (1987). Making CBT Happen. Boston, MA: Weingarten Publications, Inc.
- Harp, Candice G., Satzinger, John W., & Taylor, Sandra C (1998). Computer Training and Individual Differences: When Method Matters. *Human Resource Development Quarterly*, 9(3), 271-283.
- Kearsley, G., & Marquardt, M. J. (1999). Technology-Based Learning: maximizing human performance and corporate success. Boca Raton, FL: CRC Press LLC.
- Kidder, Pamela J., Rouiller, Janice Z. (1997, Spring). Evaluating the success of a large-scale training effort. *National Productivity Review*. Retrieved November 15, 2007 from http://ezproxy.lib.uwstout.edu:2093/pqdweb?index=18&did=677631821 &SrchMode=3&sid=1&Fmt=10&VInst=PROD&VType=PQD&RQT=309&VNa me=PQD&TS=1197421347&clientId=3847&aid=1.
- Kirkpatrick, Donald L. (1994). Evaluating Training Programs. San Francisco, CA:

 Berrett-Koehler Publishers, Inc.
- Lewis, Dr. Malcom. (1999, December). Computer-Based Training: New Technologies for Improved Effectiveness. *HPAC Engineering*. 53-56.

- Mall, Gary P. & Spotts, David S. (1993). A Comparison of Computer-Based Training and Classroom Instruction. *Industrial Engineering*. 25(2) 25-27.
- McCain, Donald V. (2005). Evaluation Basics. Alexandria, VA: American Society for Training & Development.
- O'Connell, B. (2002, July). A Poor Grade for E-Learning. Workforce. 15.
- Phillips, J. J., Stone, R. D. (2002). How to Measure Training Results. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill.
- Pollak, Richard D. (1995). A cancer epidemic? Perception vs. reality. Forum for Applied Research and Public Policy. Retrieved November 29, 2007 from http://ezproxy.lib.uwstout.edu:2113/hww/shared/shared_main.jhtml?_requestid=117625.
- Schuldiner, Herb (2006). Perception vs. Reality. Wards Business Dealer. Retrieved

 November 29, 2007 from

 http://ezproxy.lib.uwstout.edu:2113/hww/shared/shared_main.jhtml?_requestid=2
 20525.
- VandenBos, Gary R. (2007). APA Dictionary of Psychology. Washington, DC: American Psychological Association.
- Wehr, Joe. (1988, June). Instructor-Led or Computer-Based: Which Will Work Best For You? *Training & Development Journal*, 42. 18-21.
- Wendt, Joan Marie. (2001). The impact of classroom instruction versus computer-based instruction on participant learning of technical information. Ph.D. dissertation, Capella University, United States Minnesota. Retrieved November 29, 2007, from ProQuest Digital Dissertations database. (Publication No. AAT 3002457).

Appendix A: Cover Letter

Employee Perceptions Towards Computer-Based Training

You have been selected to participate in a survey regarding computer-based training (CBT) courses. The goal of this survey is to assess your overall perception of the CBT courses used for compliance purposes as well as for personal and professional growth.

The feedback from this survey will be used for research to complete a study on "Employee Perceptions of Computer-Based Training" as well as to improve the current computer-based training courses used today.

Please read the following information to fully understand the potential risks, benefits, and confidentiality components of this study.

Please complete the on-line survey on or before November 9, 2007.

Potential risks and confidentiality components:

- 1. Participation in this survey is strictly voluntary.
- 2. The responses obtained in this survey will be kept confidential.
- 3. The data will contain no identifiers linking responses back to the subjects after the survey is submitted.
- 4. Completing the survey will take 5-10 minutes of your time.
- 5. Participation in this study does not present any risk to you.

Benefits:

- 1. This information may be used to improve computer-based training courses and increase or decrease the number of computer-based training courses used.
- 2. A summary of the results will be shared with Senior Leadership and the training department.

IRB Approval:

This study has been reviewed and approved by The University of Wisconsin-Stout's Institutional Review Board (IRB). The IRB has determined that this study meets the ethical obligations required by federal law and University policies. If you have questions or concerns regarding this study please contact the Investigator or Advisor. If you have any questions, concerns, or reports regarding your rights as a research subject, please contact the IRB Administrator.

Investigator: Amy Gustafson, 858-2201, gustafsona@uwstout.edu

Advisor: Dr. David Johnson 715-232-2143, johnsondav@uwstout.edu

IRB Administrator

Sue Foxwell, Director, Research Services 152 Vocational Rehabilitation Bldg. UW-Stout Menomonie, WI 54751

Menomonie, WI 54751 foxwells@uwstout.edu 715-232-2477

Consent to participate:

By clicking on the highlighted link below, you are giving your informed consent as a participating volunteer in this study. It also indicates you understand the purpose, risks, benefits, and confidentiality components of this study.

To begin the survey, please click on the link below.

Appendix B: Survey

Demographic Information:		
Select the category that represents your age:		
Under 20		
20-25		
26-30		
31-35		
36-40		
41-45		
46-50		
51-55		
56-60		
60 and older		
What is your gender:	Male	Female
Length of Employment with	the company:	
Less than 6 months		
6-12 months		
1-2 years		
2-4 years		
4-6 years		
6 or more years		

1 2 3 4

Section One

Please answer the following questions either yes or no.

1. In the past year, I have enrolled in a computer-based training course through Learnwell.

Yes No

2. In the past year, my Supervisor has enrolled me in a course to complete through Learnwell.

Yes No

3. I am aware I am able to enroll in courses in Learnwell.

Yes No

4. I was required to repeat a course in the past year.

Yes No

Section Two

Please rate your agreement with the statements below on a scale of 1 to 4.

1 = Strongly disagree

2 = Disagree

3 = Agree

the opportunity.

4 = Strongly agree

	3 = Agree 4 = Strongly agree	
1.	Adequate time is allowed to complete computer-based training course	s. 1 2 3 4
2.	I use the allotted time to complete computer-based training courses.	1 2 3 4
3.	Computer-based training courses provide sufficient information.	1 2 3 4
4.	Computer-based training courses have sufficient interactive modules.	1 2 3 4
5.	I retain the information provided in the computer-based training cours	es. 1 2 3 4
6.	I find the self-paced style of computer-based training beneficial.	1 2 3 4
7.	Computer-based training courses meet my training needs.	1 2 3 4
8.	Computer-based training courses are effective alternatives to instructor-led classroom courses.	1 2 3 4
9.	I have had opportunities to provide feedback on computer-based training courses.	1 2 3 4
10.	I provide feedback on computer-based training courses when given	

Please answer the following questions.

- 1. Do you prefer computer-based training or instructor-led classroom training? Please explain why or why not.
- 2. What changes would you suggest for future computer-based training courses?

Additional Comments: